
SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
MEETING

SUMMONS
10.30 am, Tuesday, 20th March, 2018
Orbit Business Centre, 
Rhydycar Business Park, 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF48 1DL

Further information regarding this agenda is available from the 
Democratic Services Department at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Tel: (01685) 725284   Email: democratic@merthyr.gov.uk

A G E N D A
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Minutes of previous meeting - Tuesday, 30 
January 2018 

(Pages 5 - 10)



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is the host local authority for the 
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

4. Public Questions 
To receive any Public Questions. 

Note: Members of the public are able to ask questions or 
make a statement in relation to the responsibilities and 
functions of the Panel at each meeting. A maximum of 30 
minutes will be allocated to this at the start of each meeting, 
and each question or statement should last no longer than 3 
minutes. Questions must be put in writing to the Monitoring 
Officer at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council no later 
than 10 clear working days before the meeting. Questions 
are limited to a maximum of 2 per person / organisation. A 
response will be given as either a direct oral answer or a 
written reply. Statements must be given in writing and can be 
received up to 10 minutes before the start of the meeting.

5. Briefing Session 
A briefing session for Panel Members will be held 
from 10.35am - 11.05am (approximately) prior to 
the arrival of any invited attendees or witnesses to 
the meeting.

6. Police and Crime Commissioners Operating Model 
To receive a PowerPoint presentation on the day 
from the Commissioner

7. Approval of Complaints Procedure 
To consider the attached report (Pages 11 - 20)

8. SWPCP Work Programme and Future Meeting 
Dates 
To consider the attached report (Pages 21 - 24)

9. Date of Next Meeting 
Tuesday 5th June 2018 at 10.30am
Orbit Business Centre, Rhydycar Business Park, 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF48 1DL

10. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor R Smith (Chair)
Councillor : B Bowen-Thomson, T Davies, K Gibbs, R 
Lewis, P Rees, C Richards, K Roberts, J Thomas and 
R Young
Co-optee(s): M Jehu and M Jones

together with appropriate officers



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING

SOUTH WALES POLICE AND 
CRIME PANEL MEETING

TUESDAY, 30TH JANUARY, 2018

PRESENT: Councillor R Smith (In the Chair)

Councillors B Bowen-Thomson, T Davies, K Gibbs, R Lewis, 
P Rees, J Thomas and R Young

Co-optees:
Mr Melvin Jehu and Mr Martyn Jones

Outside Bodies:
Mr Alun Michael Police and Crime Commissioner
Ms Emma Wools Assistant Police and Crime Commissioner
Mr Richard Lewis Deputy Chief Constable
Mr Umar Hussain Chief Finance Officer
Mr Lee Jones Interim Chief of Staff
Mr Stephen Trigg Chair Local Police Federation 

Officers: 
Simon Jones (Senior Solicitor) and Howard Jones (Scrutiny 
Officer)

Mair Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

1  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C 
Richards and Councillor K Roberts.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2  Declarations of Interest Councillor B Bowen Thomson advised that she was 
involved with a Community Safety Charity – Violence 
against women and girls. 

Mr M Jehu advised that he sat on the Board of Safer 
Merthyr Tydfil.

Councillor R Lewis advised that his portfolio covered 
Community Safety and Domestic Violence.

Former Chief Constable

The Chair welcomed Peter Vaughan former Chief Constable to the Meeting and together with 
Mr Jehu and the Panel thanked Mr Vaughan for his Service to the Force over a number of 
years. 

Mr Vaughan then thanked the Panel for their support.

3  Minutes of Previous 
Meeting(s)

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Meeting held 5 December 2017 be 
accepted as a correct record.

4  Public Questions Simon Jones outlined in detail to the Panel the mechanisms 
available for the public to raise questions with the Panel.

Mr Jones then referred to correspondence received in 
relation to a complaint that had been ongoing for three and 
a half years and the actions that had been undertaken to 
date.

Mr Jones then read out the letter that had been received in 
full for the information of the Panel and advised that the 
letter was being dealt with by the Panel Chair and the 
Monitoring Officer and a response would be sent.

5  Briefing Session Simon Jones referred the Panel to a Briefing Note that 
explained the Panel’s role and its options for decision 
making in relation to the proposed Precept.

The Panel then discussed in detail the issues that were to 
be considered at the Meeting.

6  The Medium Term 
Financial Strategy

The Chair welcomed Alun Michael Police and Crime 
Commissioner, Richard Lewis Deputy Chief Constable, 
Emma Wools Deputy Commissioner, Lee Jones Interim 
Chief of Staff, Umar Hussain Chief Finance Officer and 
Stephen Trigg Chair Local Police Federation to the Meeting.

The Panel were then circulated with a letter from Matt Jukes 
Chief Constable in relation to the item.

The Panel were also circulated with a further Appendix 
(13a) in relation to the Revenue Budget 2018/19.

The Panel then received a Presentation from Mr Michael, 

Page 4



Mr Lewis, Ms Wools, Mr Hussain, Mr Trigg and Mr Jones 
giving details of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018-
2022 and Police Precept 2018-19:

 Change in Police Officer Strength 1979 to 2017 – 
England and Wales and South Wales Police

 Cumulative Impact of Government Decisions on 
Police Funding 1995–2022

 Prevention and Intervention – Bid Title
 Police and Crime Commissioners Budget
 Budget Pressures from Cuts and Inflation
 Budget Reconciliation and Savings 2016-2019
 Capital Programme and Funding
 Comparative Position Reserves
 Percentage of Debt to Annual Budget 2017-18
 Vulnerability Gap
 Pay and Price Inflation / New NI Charges / LPGS 

Apprenticeship Levy / Vulnerability Gap / 
Emergency Services Network

 Precept History to 2017/18
 Police Precept as % of Total Budget
 What we do compared to our most similar Forces
 Total Crime Recorded 2017
 Crime: Increasing and more complex
 Violence against the Person- Violence without 

injury-Sexual Offences
 Hidden Harms
 Non Crime Demand is Huge
 Policing the Capital: A Unique Challenge
 Major Events
 The Funding Settlement
 Council Tax Bands across the South Wales Police 

Area
 Percentage of Dwellings with less than Band D 

Charge
 Savings made to 2017/18
 National picture of a £12 Precept increase in terms 

of %
 Unresolved Funding Inequities
 Comparison of Policing Performance
 Changes in External Grant Funding 2010-2018
 Conclusions
 Precept History to 2017/18

Mr Michael then referred to the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2018-2022 and recommended an increase of 
£1.27 per month or 7%.

The Panel then raised the following questions on the report 
and were responded to in detail by Mr Michael:

 What has changed from the last Panel Meeting to 
increase the Precept to 7%

 Is 7% enough to ensure that there are no extra 
pressures on Officers

 Increased Governance Costs

Page 5



Mr Michael and the Officers then left the Meeting to enable 
the Panel to consider the recommendation.

Considerable debate then ensued on the recommendation 
as contained within the report with the Panel commenting 
that any savings were not to be taken away from front line 
Policing

Simon Jones then reminded the Committee that to Veto the 
recommendation eight Panel Members had to vote for the 
Veto.

A vote was then taken on whether to Veto the 
recommendation of 7% and the number required to Veto 
was not reached.  Therefore it was

Resolved that:

There is an increase of £1.27 per month (£15.28 per annum 
or 7%) which results in a Council Tax on a Band D Property 
of £233.52 and gives a total Precept requirement of 
£113,598,846 which would be Precepted on the relevant 
billing Authority in accordance with Appendix 13.

Councillor J Thomas left the Meeting at 1.30 pm.

Mr Michael and the Officers re-entered the Meeting and 
were advised by the Chair of the decision of the Panel.

7  Annual Report Alun Michael referred the Panel to the Annual Report.

Resolved that:

The contents of the Annual report be agreed with no 
recommendations from the Panel.

8  Correspondence 
received - Nomination 
of SWPCP Member to 
sit on the Swansea 
Public Services Board 
Scrutiny Performance 
Panel.

The Chair referred the Panel to correspondence received 
from the Swansea Public Services Board Scrutiny 
Performance Panel.

Resolved that:

The request to nominate a Panel Member to sit on the 
Swansea Public Services Board Scrutiny Performance 
Panel be declined.

9  Oversight of 
Complaints

The Chair referred the Panel to the ‘Oversight of 
Complaints’ report.

A Member then referred to the issue of vexatious 
complaints and enquired if there was a Policy in place for 
this.

Another Member then recommended that a standard letter 
be compiled in relation to vexatious complaints.

Resolved that:

Page 6



(a)  The content of the report be noted
(b) A letter be drafted for consideration at the next 

Panel Meeting in relation to vexatious complaints

Councillor R Young left the Meeting at 1.42 pm.

Councillor B Bowen-Thomson left the Meeting at 1.42 pm.

10  Sixth National 
Conference for PCP's

The Chair referred the Panel to the Conference that he and 
the Vice Chair had attended and the Panel were circulated 
with notes arising from the Conference.

The Chair also advised that any questions arising from the 
Conference be addressed to himself or the Vice Chair.

Resolved that:

The update from the Chair be received.

11  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO 

THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

20th March 2018

Approval of Complaints Procedure

Purpose of the Report

This report seeks Members’ approval for the Panel’s complaints procedure.

1.0 Background / Information

1.1 The Police and Crime Panel have a statutory role in the handling and 
determination of certain complaints made against the South Wales 
Police and Crime Commissioner and Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner. This report sets out the suggested procedure for the 
operation of the Panel’s complaints procedure and seeks approval for 
the delegation of certain responsibilities to the host authority’s 
Monitoring Officer, following consultation with the Panel’s Chair.

1.2 The draft Complaints Procedure is attached to this report and is based 
upon statutory requirements. The statutory procedures are prescribed 
and complex and allow very little scope for flexibility or local 
determination. To date the Panel has handled all complaints in line with 
both the statutory requirements and the Panels Rules of Procedure.

1.3 Complaints defined as a ‘Conduct Matter’ or ‘Serious Complaint’ must 
be referred to the Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOPC) 
(formerly the Independent Police Complaints Commission IPCC) 
without delay.

1.4 A Conduct Matter is defined as a matter where there is an indication 
(whether from the circumstances or otherwise) that the Commissioner 
and/or the Deputy Commissioner may have committed a criminal 
offence. Conduct matters can arise without a Complaint being made 
(for example, press stories). A Conduct Matter requires evidence to 
show an indication that a criminal offence may have been committed. A 
mere assertion without more, that a criminal offence has been 
committed is unlikely to suffice. However, an assertion coupled with a 
fairly low degree of evidence is likely to be an adequate sign of 
potential criminal conduct, resulting in the matter being referred to the 
IPCC as a Conduct Matter.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



1.5 A Serious Complaint is defined as a complaint about the conduct of the 
Commissioner and/or the Deputy Commissioner which constitutes or 
involves, or appears to constitute or involve the commission of a 
criminal offence. There must be evidence of conduct that constitutes or 
appears to constitute or involve the commission of a criminal offence. A 
Serious Complaint requires stronger evidence, as the evidence must 
show that there is conduct that appears to constitute or involve the 
commission of an offence. Therefore, the level of evidence will be more 
than for a Conduct Matter but is likely to be much less than would be 
required by a court.

1.6 The Panel is responsible for the ‘informal resolution’ of other 
complaints about the Commissioner and/or the Deputy Commissioner 
that are not a Conduct Matter or a Serious Complaint, or is a complaint 
that ceases to be investigated by the IOPC or a police force. Informal 
resolution is considered to be encouraging, facilitating, or otherwise 
assisting in the resolution of the complaint otherwise than by legal 
proceedings. The Panel does not have powers of investigation but can 
seek further clarification from the complainant and the person being 
complained about. 

2.0 Public Questions and Statements

2.1 The public are entitled to attend Panel meetings. Paragraph 24 of the 
Panel’s Rules of Procedure allow the public to participate in meetings 
by way of questions and statements. Paragraph 24.1 states that 
questions and statements must relate to the responsibilities and 
functions of the Panel.  

2.2 To avoid duplication of work in relation to complaints the Panel is 
asked to consider whether it wishes to re-define the scope of permitted 
questions and statements to preclude questions and statements being 
made in relation to complaints on the basis that the handling of 
complaints have been delegated to the Chair of the Panel and the 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Monitoring Officer in line with 
paragraph 21 of the Rules of Procedure and any procedure adopted by 
the Panel. The full Panel will receive a report on complaints at least 
annually or upon request from a member.

3.0 Recommendation(s)

3.1 The Panel approves the attached draft Complaints Procedure.

3.2 Delegated authority is granted to the Chair in consultation with the 
Monitoring Officer to review and amend if necessary the Panels “Rules 
of Procedure”. 

Simon Jones
Senior Solicitor
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Page 10



Draf
t

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 
 

SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND  
THE SOUTH WALES DEPUTY POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

 
 
Introduction 
This procedural note details the complaints procedure relating to the South Wales 
Police and Crime Commissioner (the Commissioner) and South Wales Deputy 
Police and Crime Commissioner (the Deputy Commissioner).  The note is based on 
the provisions of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Elected 
Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2011. 
 
Role of the South Wales Police and Crime Panel 
The South Wales Police and Crime Panel (“the Panel”) has statutory responsibilities 
as to the handling and determination of certain complaints made against the 
Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner. The Panel has delegated its complaint 
handling functions to the  Chair of the Panel (the Chair) who must consult with the 
Monitoring Officer at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (the Panel’s Host 
Authority) in determining type of complaints received, the strategy for managing 
complaints for local resolution and the Panel’s final resolution of complaints. Both 
Chair of the Panel and the Monitoring Officer will be supported in their handling of 
complaints by the Senior Solicitor of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. 
 
Overview 
The Chief of Staff of the Commissioner’s Office may (if appropriate) be consulted on 
the strategy for determining whether complaints will be considered by the Panel or 
referred to the Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOPC) or a third party.  It is 
intended that complaints received are dealt with in a timely fashion, correctly 
identified as being complaints which fall to the Panel for action and other complaints, 
for example, about the Commissioner’s staff or South Wales Police are directed as 
appropriate. 
 
Types of Complaints 
There are 3 different categories of complaints: 
 
1. A Complaint - a general complaint about the Commissioner or Deputy 

Commissioner that is not a Conduct Matter or a Serious Complaint, or is a 
complaint that ceases to be investigated by the Independent Office for Police 
Conduct (IOPC) or a police force. The Panel is responsible for the informal 
resolution of these complaints. 

 
2. A Conduct Matter - a matter where there is an indication (whether from the 

circumstances or otherwise) that the Commissioner and/or Deputy 

Page 11



Draf
t

Commissioner may have committed a criminal offence.   Conduct matters can 
arise without a Complaint being made (for example, press stories).  The 
Panel must notify the IOPC of Conduct Matters. The IOPC are responsible for 
considering all Conduct matters. 

 
3. A Serious Complaint - a complaint about the conduct of the Commissioner or 

Deputy Commissioner which constitutes or involves, or appears to constitute or 
involve the commission of a criminal offence.   The Panel must notify the IOPC 
of Serious Complaints. The IOPC are responsible for considering all Serious 
Complaints. 

 
Evidence for Conduct Matters and Serious Complaints 
The difference between a Conduct Matter and a Serious Complaint is the level of 
evidence present in the complaint or other circumstances (eg. press reports) as to 
whether a criminal offence has potentially been committed by the Commissioner or 
Deputy Commissioner.  It is not for the Panel to determine whether a criminal offence 
has been committed, only to make a judgement as to whether a complaint should be 
considered a Conduct Matter or Serious Complaint. 
 
A Conduct Matter - Requires evidence to show an indication that a criminal offence 
may have been committed. A mere assertion without more, that a criminal offence 
has been committed is unlikely to suffice.  However, an assertion coupled with a 
fairly low degree of evidence is likely to be an adequate sign of potential criminal 
conduct, resulting in the matter being referred to the IOPC as a Conduct Matter 
 
A Serious Complaint - There must be evidence of conduct that constitutes or appears 
to constitute or involve the commission of a criminal offence.  A  Serious 
Complaint requires stronger evidence, as the evidence must show that there is 
conduct that appears to constitute or involve the commission of an offence.  
Therefore, the level of evidence will be more than for a Conduct Matter but is likely to 
be much less than would be required by a court. 
 
Making a Complaint about the Commissioner or the Commissioner 
Complaints about the Commissioner and/or Deputy Commissioner should be 
addressed to the Monitoring Officer, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Civic 
Centre, Castle Street, MERTHYR TYDFIL, CF47 8AN. 
 
Receipt of Complaints 
Upon receipt of a complaint, the Panel will check that the complaint relates to either 
the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner. If the complaint relates to a person 
other than the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner the complaint will be 
forwarded to the appropriate office and the complainant informed. 
 
Determining Type of Complaint 
The Monitoring Officer will consult with the Chair to determine the type of complaint;  
namely,  a  complaint  for  local  resolution  by  the  Panel  or  whether  the complaint 
should be considered a ‘Conduct Matter’ or ‘Serious Complaint’ and referred to the 
IOPC for determination. 
 
If the complaint is considered to be a complaint for local resolution (in whole or part) 
the complainant will be notified of that fact and provided with an explanation of the 

Page 12



Draf
t

action the Panel intends to take.  The Panel will also inform the Chief of Staff of the 
Commissioner’s Office.  Likewise, if the complaint is considered to be a  ‘Conduct  
Matter’  or  ‘Serious  Complaint’  it  will  be  referred  to  the  IOPC  for determination. 
The complainant and the Commissioner’s Chief of Staff will be notified. 
 
The Recorded Complaints and Conduct Matters Register 
If the complaint relates to the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner the 
complaint will be registered in the ‘Recorded Complaints and Conduct Matters 
Register’. 
 
The Recorded Complaints and Conduct Matters Register is used to record the 
following information; a summary of the complaint, the category of complaint 
(Complaint, Conduct Matter or Serious Complaint), the date of receipt, an indication 
of intended action on the Complaint and any other information deemed relevant. 
 
If any of the following exceptions apply, it is not necessary to record a Conduct 
Matter: 
 
• The matter has already been recorded as a complaint or 
• The matter has or is being dealt with by means of criminal proceedings 

against the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner. 
 
If the IOPC becomes aware of a Conduct Matter that has not been recorded 
by the Panel, the IOPC may direct the Panel to record the complaint. 

 
If any of the following exceptions apply, it is not necessary to record a Complaint: 

 
• If it has been or is currently being dealt with by criminal proceedings: this 

will normally be the case where the Police have formally charged the person 
complained about or information alleging an offence has been laid before a 
magistrate’s court or 

• The Complaint has been withdrawn. 
 
If recorded (in whole or part) the Panel will notify the Complainant of that fact 
and provide information about the next steps to be taken in relation to the Complaint.  
 
Likewise, the Complainant will be informed of the decision not to record the 
Complaint and not to take any further action, the grounds on which that decision 
was made and whether the decision relates to all or part of the Complaint. The  
Panel  will  also  inform  the  Chief of Staff  of  the  Commissioner’s Office of the 
decision. 
 
Requiring More Information before Recording a Complaint 
Where the Monitoring Officer considers more information is required in order for a 
complaint to be considered, he may ask the complainant for additional information. 
 
A  decision  will  then  be  made  whether  to  record  the  complaint  in  the  
Recorded Complaints and Conduct Matters Register and how the complaint will be 
progressed. 
 

Page 13



Draf
t

Complaints Made to the Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner and 
Preservation of Evidence 
Where a complaint is made directly to the Commissioner and/or Deputy 
Commissioner, both are under a statutory duty to take all such steps as appear 
to them to be appropriate for obtaining and preserving evidence in relation to the 
complaint in question.   In addition they shall also comply with any requests of the 
Panel. 
 
By not later than the end of the day following the day on which the Complaint was 
made to them, the Commissioner and/or Deputy Commissioner must notify the Panel 
in writing (either by letter or email) of the complaint (including a copy of the 
complaint) and provide details of the steps they have taken to preserve such 
evidence, including its location and in whose custody it is. 
 
Complaints sent to a Member of the Panel 
Any complaint addressed to any Member of the Panel should be immediately 
directed to the Monitoring Officer at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Civic 
Centre, Castle Street, MERTHYR TYDFIL, CF47 8AN or email 
swpcp@merthyr.gov.uk along with any other available information that is relevant to 
the complaint. 
 
Complaints sent to the Chief Constable of South Wales Police 
Where a complaint is sent to a Chief Constable of South Wales Police, it is the 
duty of the Chief Constable to give notification of the complaint to the Panel. 
 
Complaints sent to the Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOPC) 
When a complaint is sent to the IOPC, it is the duty of the IOPC to notify the 
Panel, unless the IOPC considers that there are exceptional circumstances to 
justify the notification not being given. 
 
Conduct Outside England and Wales 
The Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner shall inform the Panel of any 
allegation, investigation or proceedings in relation their conduct occurring outside 
England a n d  Wales.  The Panel may deal with any such instances in whatever 
manner the Panel considers fit. 
 
Conduct Matters Arising from Civil Proceedings 
Where the Panel receives notification that civil proceedings involving a conduct 
matter have been brought against the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner by a 
member of the public, or it appears that proceedings are likely to be brought, the 
Panel shall record the matter. 
 
The Panel’s Duty to Obtain and Preserve Evidence 
When a complaint comes to the attention of the Panel, it is under a duty to secure 
that all steps as appropriate are taken for obtaining and preserving evidence in 
relation to the complaint in question. 
 
No Action on a Recorded Complaint 
If the Panel considers that a Recorded Complaint for local resolution is one which 
requires no action should be taken, or it falls within the circumstances set out 

Page 14

mailto:swpcp@merthyr.gov.uk


Draf
t

below, then the Panel may handle the complaint in whatever manner it thinks fit. 
 
The types of Recorded Complaint that may be dealt with in this way are  
 
• Where more than twelve months have elapsed since the incident and there is 

no reason for the delay or injustice would be caused by it; 
• The matter has already been the subject of a complaint; 
• The complaint is anonymous; 
• The complaint is vexatious, oppressive or otherwise an abuse of the procedures, 

or 
• The complaint is repetitious.  A “repetitious complaint” is one which is the same 

or substantially the same as a previous complaint, or concerns the same 
conduct as a previous conduct matter, contains no fresh allegations which 
affect the account of the conduct complained of, no fresh evidence (being 
evidence not reasonably available at the time the previous complaint was made 
and in respect of which a previous determination or withdrawal of complaint has 
been made). 

 
The Panel must notify the complainant that it has decided to handle the Recorded 
Complaint by taking no further action.  The Panel will also inform the Chief of Staff 
of the Commissioner’s Office. 
 
Call in by IOPC 
The Panel must refer a Recorded Complaint to the IOPC if it is notified that the 
IOPC itself requires the complaint to be referred to the IOPC. 
 
Referral of Complaints and Conduct Matters to the IOPC 
Where a Recorded Complaint or Recorded Conduct Matter is to be referred to the 
IOPC then the Panel shall do so as soon as is practicable, and in any event not 
later than the end of the day following the day on which it becomes clear to the 
Panel that the Complaint or Conduct Matter is one that should be referred to the 
IOPC.  The details in the Register will be made available to the IOPC together with 
such other information as the Panel considers appropriate. 
 
On referring a Recorded Complaint to the IOPC, the Panel must notify the 
Complainant and the person complained about of the referral, unless it appears 
to the Panel that notifying the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner might 
prejudice a possible future investigation. 
 
Referral of Complaints and Conduct Matters from the IOPC to the Panel 
Where the IOPC determines that it is not necessary for it to investigate a 
Recorded Serious Complaint, it may refer the complaint back to the Panel who must 
deal with the referral in accordance with the Informal Resolution of complaints 
procedure outlined below. The IOPC will notify the complainant and the 
Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner complained against about this decision. 
 
The IOPC, where it determines that it is not necessary for it to investigate a 
Recorded Conduct Matter, may refer the matter back to the Panel who may deal 
with it in any matter that the Panel thinks fit.   The IOPC will notify the 
Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner complained against about this decision. 

Page 15



Draf
t

 
Withdrawal of Complaints 
If the Panel received a notification that the complainant wishes to withdraw their 
Complaint, signed either by them or someone authorised to act on their behalf, 
then the complaint shall cease to apply subject to the following: 
 
• If the Recorded Complaint is with the IOPC, the Panel must notify the IOPC 

that it has recorded the withdrawal of the complaint 
 
• In the case where the IOPC has referred the Recorded Complaint to the Panel, 

it must consider whether it is in the public interest for the complaint to be 
treated as a Conduct Matter (notwithstanding the complaint’s withdrawal) and 
shall notify the IOPC accordingly. 

 
In respect of a Recorded Complaint which has not been notified to the IOPC, the 
Panel must determine whether it is the public interest for the complaint to be 
treated as a Conduct Matter despite the Complainant’s withdrawal of it.  The 
Panel shall notify the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner complained about of 
the recording of a withdrawal of the Recorded Complaint and whether he/she has 
decided to treat it as a Recorded Conduct Matter notwithstanding, and shall amend 
the Register accordingly. 
 
The IOPC, on receiving notification of withdrawal from the Panel of a Recorded 
complaint referred to it, shall determine whether it is in the public interest for the 
complaint to be treated as a Recorded Conduct Matter and notify the Panel, who 
shall notify the complainant and amend the Register accordingly. 
 
If the IOPC refers a matter back to the Panel, in the case of a Recorded Complaint 
it shall be dealt with in accordance with the Informal Resolution procedure outlined 
below and, in the case of a Recorded Conduct Matter in such manner as the Panel 
may determine. 
 
Informal Resolution of Complaints by the Panel 
A Recorded Complaint against the Commissioner and/or Deputy Commissioner 
may be dealt with by the Panel way of informal resolution. 
 
Informal resolution is considered to be encouraging, facilitating, or otherwise 
assisting in the resolution of the complaint otherwise than by legal proceedings. 
 
Delegation of Informal Resolution Complaints 
The Commissioners Chief of Staff will be responsible for undertaking the process 
of informal resolution.  Upon the conclusion of his/her investigations, the Chief of 
Staff will prepare and submit a report to the Chair of the Panel. The Chair and the 
Monitoring Officer will then consider the report together with any other matter they 
consider relevant before coming to a decision with regard to the outcome of the 
complaint 
 
Further Information 
The procedure for informal resolution shall not include a formal investigation of the 

Page 16



Draf
t

complaint but documents in relation to the complaint and meetings with the person 
complained against maybe requested. 
 
Resolved Complaints 
Where it appears to the Panel that a Recorded Complaint against the 
Commissioner and/or Deputy Commissioner had in fact already been satisfactorily 
dealt with at the time it was brought to their notice, the Panel may, subject to any 
further representations, treat it as having been resolved. 
 
Apologies 
The Panel may seek informally to resolve a complaint by securing an apology from 
the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner for the complainant, either directly or 
indirectly.  The Panel shall not, however, tender on behalf of the person 
complained against an apology for the conduct unless the person complained 
against has agreed to issue the apology. 
 
Final Resolution 
Where a Recorded Complaint has been subjected to informal resolution, the Panel 
shall as soon as practicable make a record of the outcome of the procedure and 
send a copy of that record to the complainant and the person complained against. 
 
In cases where the Panel upholds a Recorded Complaint, it has no legal 
powers to apply formal sanctions other than to provide an opinion on the conduct 
of the office- holder concerned. 
 

Complaints sub-committee 
Should the Chair and the Monitoring Officer consider it appropriate at any stage 
during the informal resolution process they may determine that a non‐criminal 
complaint in relation to the Commissioner be considered by way of a Panel hearing. 
This would be by way of a complaints sub‐committee following the procedure set out 
in paragraph 9 of the Panels Rules of Procedure. 
 
Record Keeping and Provision of Information 
The Panel shall keep records of every complaint and purported complaint made to 
him or received by him; every conduct matter recorded by the Panel arising from 
civil proceedings or otherwise coming to the attention of the Panel and every 
exercise of a power or performance of a duty under the Regulations. 
 
Annual Reporting of Complaints 
The Panel shall receive a report at least annually detailing a summary of each 
complaint (such as can be reported in public) and the exercise of its functions for 
monitoring purposes. 
 
 

 
Date: 14th March 2018 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO 

THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

20th March 2018

SWPCP Work Programme and Future Meeting Dates

Purpose of the Report
To agree the forward work programme for the Panel; and to confirm future 
meeting dates up to and including the Annual meeting in 2019.

1.0 Work Programme.

1.1 The Panel's rules of procedure state that the Panel will be responsible for 
setting its own work programme, taking into account the priorities defined 
by the Police and Crime Commissioner for South Wales (the 
Commissioner) within the context of the Police and Crime (Reduction) 
Plan and Annual Report. 

1.2 The work programme must also include the functions described in the 
terms of reference for the Panel (see appendix I). 

1.3 In setting the work programme the Panel will also take into account the 
wishes of its members. As per the Panels rules of procedure, any 
member of the Panel shall be entitled to request an item to be placed on 
an agenda for a future meeting, which is relevant to the Panel's 
functions, subject to the approval of the Chair.

1.4 A work programme will enable the Panel to plan and focus on how it will 
effectively provide challenge to the Commissioner and deliver its 
responsibilities within the context of the terms of reference and rules of 
procedure of the Panel.

1.5 It is to be noted that the work programme is flexible to enable additional 
items to accommodate items throughout the year. 

1.6 So far as practicable the Panel shall consult with the Commissioner in 
detailing its work programme in order to ensure the Panel is able to 
provide support and challenge.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



2.0 Future Meeting Dates of the Panel

2.1 In considering the work programme (Appendix II) the Panel will be 
required to agree its schedule of meetings up to and including the 
Annual Meeting in 2019.

2.2 The Panels Rules of Procedure state that there shall be a minimum of 
four ordinary meetings of the Panel held in public in each municipal year 
to carry out the functions of the Panel. In addition the Panel shall hold an 
annual meeting between 1st April and the 30th June each year to appoint 
the Chair and Vice Chair of the Panel. 

Typically the Panel schedules 5 meetings per year and as such the 
schedule of meetings is suggested as follows:-

2018/19
Tuesday 5th June 2018 (Annual Meeting)
Tuesday 18th September 2018 
Tuesday 11th December 2018 
Tuesday 29th January 2019 (Precept meeting) 
Tuesday 26th April 2019 

2019/20
Tuesday 4th June 2019 (Annual meeting)

3.0 Recommendation(s) that:-
  

3.1 The meeting dates up to and including the annual meeting in 
2019 are agreed.

3.2 The Work Programme up to and including the Panel’s Annual 
Meeting in 2019 is prepared by the Panel.

Simon Jones
Senior Solicitor, 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Page 20



APPENDIX I

South Wales Police and Crime Panel

Terms of Reference

1. To review and make a report or recommendation on the draft South Wales Police and 
Crime Plan, or draft variation to the South Wales Police and Crime Plan, provided to the 
Panel by the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner.

2. To review, put questions to the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner at a public 
meeting of the Panel, and make a report or recommendation (as necessary) on the 
annual report.

3. To hold a confirmation hearing and review, make a report and recommendation (as 
necessary) in respect of proposed senior appointments made by the South Wales Police 
and Crime Commissioner.

4. To review and make a report on the proposed appointment of the Chief Constable.

5. To review and make a report and recommendation (as necessary) on the proposed 
precept.

6. To review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the South Wales 
Police Crime Commissioner in connection with the discharge of the Commissioners 
functions (as defined by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act and 
subsequent amendments)

7. To make reports or recommendations to the South Wales Police and Crime 
Commissioner with respect to the discharge of the Commissioners functions (as defined 
by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act and subsequent amendments)

8. To support the effective exercise of the functions of the South Wales Police and Crime 
Commissioner.

9. To fulfil functions in relation to complaints about conduct matters, in accordance with the 
responsibilities accorded to the Panel under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 
Act.

10. To appoint an Acting South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner if necessary.

11. To suspend the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner if it appears to the Panel 
that the Commissioner has been charged in the United Kingdom or Isle of Man with an 
offence which carries a maximum term of imprisonment exceeding two years.

12. To carry out any other Police and Crime Panel functions and exercise any supporting 
powers contained in The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 in addition to 
those set out above.

Page 21



Page 22


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting - Tuesday, 30 January 2018
	7 Approval of Complaints Procedure
	Final Draft complaints procedure 14032018

	8 SWPCP Work Programme and Future Meeting Dates



